SUMMARY

Appendix 1

MONTHLY MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTS - MARCH 2022

	Actual Mar £	Budget Mar £	Var £	Var %	Actual YTD £	Budget YTD £	Var £	Var %	Annual Budget £	Amount Left £	Left %
AMENITIES	95112	38603	56509	146%	629818	593231	36587	6%	593231	-36587	-6%
F&GP	54647	39219	15428	39%	469513	536981	-67468	-13%	536981	67468	13%
TOTAL	149759	77822	71937	92%	1099331	1130212	-30881	-3%	1130212	30881	3%

AMENITIES

MONTHLY MANAGEMENT ACCOUNTS - MARCH 2022

	Actual Mar £	Budget Mar £	Var £	Var %	Actual YTD £	Budget YTD £	Var £	Var %	Annual Budget £	Amour Left £	t Left %
Amenities - General											
Expenditure:											
Wages & Salaries	21063	18529	2534			222347	11099	5%	222347	-11099	-5%
Ers NI	2066	1575	491	31%			2474	THE SECTION OF	18900		-13%
Ers Pension Skip Hire	2833 450	3502 500	-669	-19%			1524		42024	V 3-20-20-40-4	-4%
General Maintenance	3533	83	-50 3450	-10% 4140%			-267	-4%	6000		4%
Tree Work	19429	1750	17679				2617 3848	262% 11%	1000	-2617 -17848	-262%
Tree Planting	4041	167		2325%		1	2061	103%	2000		-85% -103%
Signs	0	333	-333				-1375	-34%	4000		0%
Vehicle Maintenance	1112	853	259	30%			12668	124%		-12668	
Fuel & Oil	430	1083	-653	-60%			1598	12%	13000		-12%
Contract Hire van	4359	2500	1859	74%	33071	30000	3071	10%	30000		-10%
Safety Equip/Covid signs	180	500	-320	-64%		6000	701	12%	6000	-701	-12%
Hand Tools	133	125	8	6%		1500	-194	-13%	1500	194	13%
Equipment	0	208	-208	-100%			-2500	-100%	2500	2500	100%
Dog Fouling	0	125	-125	-100%			17	1%	1500	-17	-1%
Ash Tree Dieback Environmental Schemes	0	1167	-1167		0	-	0		14000	14000	100%
Statutory Testing	2400	0	2400		2400		2400		0	0	
Service Level Agreemen	0	583 83	-583 -83	1000/	4556		-2444	-35%	7000	2444	35%
ocivico Level Agreemen	U	03	-03	-100%	2447	1000	1447	145%	1000	-1447	-145%
Sub-Total	62029	33667	28362	84%	442754	404009	38745	10%	404009	-36345	-9%
Income:											
Misc recharges	503	0	503	0%	913	0	913	0%	0	-913	0%
Cub Tatal									Ū	-913	
Sub-Total	503	0	503	0%	913	0	913	0%	0	-913	0%
SUB-TOTAL	61526	33667	27859	83%	441841	404009	37832	9%	404009	-37832	-9%
Ashley Sports	-1139	902	-2041	-226%	9156	10827	-1671	-15%	10827	1671	15%
Rec (including skatepark	868	383	485	127%	23542	4594	18948	412%		-18948	Domest Ro
Transfer from Reserves	Organismo di				-21000	0	-21000				
Fawcetts	17759	643		2664%	22950	7711	15239	198%	7711	-15239	
Moore Close	0	0	0	0%	-2878	0	-2878	0%	0	2878	
Fernhill Lane Allotments	5704	411	5293	0%	5924	4934	990	20%	4934	-990	-20%
Donated Seats	-376 0	109 195	-485 -195	-444%	-160	1310	-1470		1310	1470	112%
Open Spaces	3592	4188	-596	-14%	-1214 57717	2342	-3556		2342	3556	152%
Flowerbed sponsorship	-1250	-158	-1092	6.89	-2275	50254 -1900	7463 -375	15%	50254	-7463	-15%
Bus Shelter advertising	-200	-200	0	0.00	-2497	-2400	-373 -97	20% 4%	-1900 -2400	375	-20%
Plant a Tree income	-156	-142	-14	10%	-1467	-1700	233	-14%	-1700	97 -233	-4% 0%
HLS income	0	-500	500	-100%	-4471	-6000	1529	-25%	-6000	-1529	25%
Street Trading Income	-1050	-1146	96	-8%	-11710	-13750	2040	-15%	-13750	-2040	15%
Playgrounds (incl. Rec)	0	250	-250	-100%	81817	3000	78817			-78817	.070
Transfer from Reserves	0	0	0		-70000	0	-70000			70000	
Cap Ex	9834	0	9834		104543	130000	-25457	-20%	130000	25457	20%
SUB-TOTAL	33586	4935	28651	581%	187977	189222	-1245	-1%	189222	1245	1%
AMENITIES	95112	38603	56509	146%	629818	593231	36587	6%	593231	-36587	-6%

FINANCE AND GENERAL

ESCD Conoral Eve	Actual Mar	Budge Mar	t Var	Var	Actual YTD	Budget YTD	Var	Var	Annual Budget	Amount Left	: Left
F&GP - General Exp	20002	45050	40.46	050	00715						
Wages & Salaries Ers NI	20002 1979					207476					112016
Ers Pension	3604									1346	
Staff Expenses										-357	
Staff Training	69									719	48%
	727			-100%			-4275			4275	86%
Telephone & Fax	737						875			-875	-13%
Postage Stationery	127			-100%			-1078			1078	54%
Advertising	137						-829			829	33%
Subscriptions	1472		1055				765			-765	
Photocopier	0 215			-100%			-258			258	13%
The state of the s			48				-1035			1035	52%
Events Expenditure Neighbourhood Plannin	348		181				5685				-284%
Youth Co-ordination				-100%			-17935			17935	90%
Communications+Media	466		-3315				-24977			40977	90%
Professional Fees		3308		-100%			-27149			27149	68%
	6870	4023	2847				3810			-3810	-8%
Bank Charges	249	167	82				82			-82	-4%
Insurance	0	0	0	0%			80			-80	-1%
CAB	0	0	0		5000		0	2000	5000	0	0%
Election Expenses	0	417		-100%			-5000		5000	5000	100%
Mayoral Allowance	0	125		-100%			-1358		1500	1358	91%
Members Allowances	1403	1500	-97	-6%			-624		18000	624	3%
Civic Entertainment	0	125		-100%			-772		1500	772	51%
Grant Aid	3500	0	3500	V-1253	8567		3567		5000	-3567	-71%
CANGO	-15	500		-103%	5380		-620	-10%	6000	620	0%
Youth Grant Aid	0	0	0	0%		11 0 20 20 20 20 20 20	-18000	0%	18000	18000	100%
t/f to Reserve - Election	5000	0	5000		5000		5000				
Sub-Total	46036	38657	7379	19%	421114	506885	-85771	-17%	506885	90771	18%
Wayleaves/rates/Dons	315	0	315		1397	14	1383		14	-1383	0%
Insurance recharge	2105	0	2105		2105	0	2105				- 70
Grants Received	3000	0	3000		2000	0	2000		0	0	0%
Interest received	329	208	121	58%	2566	2500	66	3%	2500	-66	0%
CANGO	3000	333	2667	800%	3000	4000	-1000	-25%	4000	1000	0%
Sub-Total	8749	542	8207		11068	6514	4554	70%	6514	-1449	-22%
SUB-TOTAL	37287	38115	-828.4	-2%	410046	500371	-90325	-18%	500371	92220	18%
Rent		0	0	0%	7540	75.40	, č	004	75.10	_	
Rates	0	416		-100%	7540	7540	0	0%	7540	0	0%
Water	Ü	0	-410	0%	5015	4990	25	1%	4990	-25	-1%
Electricity		0	0	0%		50	-50	0%	50	50	100%
Gas		0	0	0%		3500	-3500	0%	3500	3500	100%
General Maintenance	49	0	49		10050	1500	-1500	0%	1500	1500	100%
Equipment Maint	49			0%	10953	12280	-1327	0%	12280	1327	11%
F&F		104		-100%	101	1250	-1149	0%	1250	1149	92%
Transfer from Reserves	22060	42		-100%	96	500	-404	-81%	500	404	81%
Christmas Lights		0	23860	00/	7897	00500	7897	5250	125 2		
Service of the special control of the control of th	-3999	0	-3999	0%	19417	20500	-1083	0%	20500	1083	5%
SUB-TOTAL	19910	562	19348	0%	51019	52110	-1091	-2%	52110	8988	17%
CIL Receipts		0	0	0%	-37536	-22000	-15536	0%	-22000	15536	-71%
Donations	-3000	0	-3000		-5700	0	-5700	0%	0	5700	1 1 70
Transfer to Reserves	015.07B	0	0	0%	37536	0	37536	0%		-37536	
CCTV (Budget IT)	450	542	-92	-17%	14148	6500	7648	118%	6500	-7648 ·	1100/
SUB-TOTAL	-2550	542	-92	-17%		-15500		-155%	-15500		
										-7648	49%
F&GP TOTAL	54647	39219	15428	39%	469513	536981	-67468	-13%	536981	67468	13%

Unaudited Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 March 2022

Table of Contents

31 March 2022

	Page
Table of Contents	2
Council Information	3
Statement of Responsibilities	4
Statement of Accounting Policies	5
Income and Expenditure Account	
Statement of Movement in Reserves	
Balance Sheet	10
Cash Flow Statement	11
Notes to the Accounts	12
1 Other Costs Analysis	12
2 Interest and Investment Income	
3 Agency Work	12
4 Related Party Transactions	13
5 Audit Fees	
6 General Power of Competence	
7 Members' Allowances	
8 Employees	
9 Pension Costs	
10 Tangible Fixed Assets	
11 Financing of Capital Expenditure	15
12 Information on Assets Held	
13 Investments	
14 Debtors	
15 Current Asset Investments	
16 Creditors and Accrued Expenses	
17 Deferred Grants	
18 Capital Financing Account	18
19 Financial Instruments Financing Account	
20 Usable Capital Receipts Reserve	
21 Earmarked Reserves	
22 Capital Commitments	
23 Contingent Liabilities	
24 Reconciliation of Revenue Cash Flow	
25 Movement in Cash	
26 Post Balance Sheet Events	
Appendices	21

Council Information

31 March 2022

(Information current at 27th June 2022)

Chairman

Cllr K. E. Craze

Councillors

Cllr R. Murrow (Vice Chairman)

Cllr G. R. Blunden

Cllr M. Brownsea

Cllr S. J. Clarke

Cllr M. Craze

Cllr S. P. Davies

Cllr D. E. Hawkins

Cllr A. D. O'Sullivan

Cllr R. A. Reid

Cllr A. W. Rice

Cllr D. A. Rice - Mundy

Cllr D. Samber

Cllr V. E. Schooling

Cllr D. N. Tungate

Cllr H. Wallis-Dowling

Cllr C. V. Ward

Cllr J. G. Ward

Clerk to the Council

Mr G. P. Flexman MBA MSc DMS CiLCA

Auditors

PKF Littlejohn SBA Team 1 Westferry Circus Canary Wharf London E14 4HD

Internal Auditors

Auditing Solutions Limited Clackerbrook Farm 46 The Common Bromham Chippenham Wiltshire SN15 2JJ

Statement of Responsibilities

31 March 2022

The Council's Responsibilities

The council is required:

- to make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs
- to secure that one of its officers (R.F.O.) has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. At this council that officer is the Clerk to the Council, and
- to manage its affairs to secure economic, efficient and effective use of resources and safeguard its assets.

The Responsible Financial Officer's Responsibilities

The R.F.O. is responsible for the preparation of the council's Unaudited Financial Statements in accordance with Part 4 of the "Governance and Accountability for Local Councils – A Practitioners Guide (England) (as amended)" (the guide), so far as is applicable to this council, to present a true and fair view of the financial position of the council at 31 March 2022 and its income and expenditure for the year then ended.

In preparing the Unaudited Financial Statements, the R.F.O. has:

- selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently
- · made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent, and
- complied with the guide.

The R.F.O. has also:

- · kept proper accounting records, which were up to date, and
- taken reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Responsible Financial Officer's Certificate

I further certify that the Unaudited Financial Statements present a true and fair view of the financial position of New Milton Town Council at 31 March 2022, and its income and expenditure for the year ended 31 March 2022.

Signed:	
	Mr G. P. Flexman MBA MSc DMS CiLCA- Clerk to the Council
_	
Date:	

Statement of Accounting Policies

31 March 2022

Auditors

The name and address of the External Auditors is provided for information only.

These Statements are not subject to audit and the External Auditors have no responsibility for them.

Accounting Convention

The accounts have been prepared in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard for Smaller Entities (effective April 2008) (FRSSE) issued by the Accounting Standards Board, as applied to Local Councils by part 4 of Governance and Accountability for Local Councils – A Practitioners Guide (England) (the guide). Comparative figures have been restated to conform to the revised formats where appropriate. Certain requirements have been omitted for clarity and simplicity as these statements are not subject to audit. They are produced in support of the council's audited Statement of Accounts contained within the Annual Return Statement of Accounts.

These accounts have been prepared having regard to the fundamental accounting concepts of: Going Concern, Prudence, Accruals, Relevance, Consistency, Reliability, Comparability, Understandability and Materiality.

The accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention.

Fixed Assets

All expenditure in excess of £1000 (on any one item or group of similar items) on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of fixed assets is capitalised on an accruals basis in the accounts. Expenditure on fixed assets is capitalised, provided that the fixed asset yields benefits to the authority and the services it provides, for a period of more than one year. Fixed assets are valued on the basis recommended by the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) and in accordance with the statements of asset valuation principles and guidance notes issued by the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS). The closing balances are stated on the following basis:

land and buildings are included in the balance sheet at Depreciated Replacement Cost (DRC). The DRC basis of valuation requires an estimate of the value of the land in its existing use, together with the current replacement cost of the building and its external works, from which appropriate deductions have been made to reflect the age, condition, economic, functional and environmental obsolescence and other locational factors which might result in the existing building being worth less than a new replacement building,

all other assets are included in the balance sheet at the lower of cost (estimated where not known) or estimated realisable value, except that,

certain community assets are the subject of restrictive covenants as to their use and/or future disposal. Such assets are therefore considered to have no appreciable realisable value and are included at nominal value only.

The surplus or deficit arising on periodic revaluations of fixed assets has been credited or debited to the Revaluation Reserve. Subsequent revaluations of fixed assets are planned at five yearly intervals, although material changes to asset valuations will be adjusted in the interim period, should they occur.

In accordance with Financial Reporting Standard (FRS) 15, depreciation is provided on all operational buildings (but not land), as well as other assets.

Statement of Accounting Policies

31 March 2022

Depreciation Policy

Buildings and leasehold land are depreciated over the shorter of 50 years or the anticipated remaining useful lives on a straight line basis.

Freehold land is not depreciated.

Non Operational Assets (including Investment Properties) are not depreciated.

Vehicles, plant, equipment and furniture are depreciated over 4 to 15 years on a straight line basis.

Play equipment is depreciated over 15 years on a straight line basis.

Infrastructure assets are depreciated over 15 years on a straight line basis.

Community assets are not depreciated because they are of intrinsic or purely nominal value.

Depreciation is accounted for as a Balance Sheet movement only, not through the Income and Expenditure Account.

Grants or Contributions from Government or Related Bodies

Capital Grants

Where a fixed asset has been acquired or improved with the financing either wholly or in part by a grant or contribution from government or a related body, e.g. Sports Council, the amount of the grant has been credited to Deferred Grants Account and carried forward. Grants so credited are released back to revenue over the life of the asset to match, and thereby offset wholly or in part, depreciation charged.

Revenue Grants

Revenue grants are credited to income when conditions attached thereto have been fulfilled and/or equivalent expenditure has been incurred. Grants received in respect of which the conditions have not been fulfilled, or expenditure incurred, are carried forward as deferred revenue grants.

Investments

Investments are included in the balance sheet at historic cost and realised gains or losses are taken into the income and expenditure account as realised. Details are given at notes 13 and 15.

Debtors and Creditors

The revenue accounts of the council are maintained on an accruals basis in accordance with the regulations. That is sums due to or from the council during the year are included whether or not the cash has actually been received or paid in the year. Exceptions to this are payment of regular quarterly and other accounts (e.g. telephones, electricity). This policy is applied consistently each year. Therefore, it will not have a material effect on the year's accounts or on the council's annual budget.

The council reviews the level of its commercial debtors on a regular basis and provisions are made, as required, where the likelihood of amounts proving ultimately collectable is in doubt.

Value Added Tax

Income and Expenditure excludes any amounts related to VAT, as all VAT suffered/collected is recoverable from or payable to HM Revenue and Customs. Any amounts not so recoverable are treated as a separate expense.

Statement of Accounting Policies

31 March 2022

External Loan Repayments

The council has no long term borrowing. Consequently, there were no external loan repayments made in the year.

Leases

The council has no commitments under finance leases. Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to revenue on an accruals basis.

Reserves

The council maintains certain reserves to meet general and specific future expenditure. The purpose of the council's reserves is explained in notes 18 to 21.

Certain reserves are maintained to manage the accounting processes for tangible fixed assets, available for sale investments and retirement benefits. They do not represent usable resources for the council:

Capital Financing Account – represent the council's investment of resources in such assets already made.

Interest Income

All interest receipts are credited initially to general funds.

Pensions

The pension costs that are charged against precept in the council's accounts, in respect of its employees, are equal to the contributions paid to the funded pension scheme for those employees.

These contributions are determined by the fund's actuary on a triennial basis and are set to meet 100% of the liabilities of the pension fund, in accordance with relevant government regulations.

The next actuarial valuation was due at 31st March 2022 and any change in contribution rates as a result of that valuation will take effect from 1st April 2023.

Income and Expenditure Account

31 March 2022

	Notes	2022 £	2021 £
Income			
Precept on District Council		1,130,212	1,130,212
Grants Receivable		5,866	25,273
Rents Receivable, Interest & Investment Income		4,431	3,279
Charges made for Services Other Income		90,954	80,938
Other Income	-	42,905	20,686
Total Income	-	1,274,368	1,260,388
Expenditure			
Direct Service Costs:			
Salaries & Wages		(298,368)	(266,066)
Grant-aid Expenditure	1	(18,947)	(34,305)
Other Costs	1	(494,945)	(305,809)
Democratic, Management & Civic Costs:			
Salaries & Wages		(263,032)	(238,683)
Other Costs	1	(155,205)	(148,998)
Total Expenditure	-	(1,230,497)	(993,861)
Excess of Income over Expenditure for the year.		43,871	266,527
Exceptional Items			
Profit on the disposal of fixed assets		1,500	1,700
Investment Profits	-	11,057	1,851
Net Operating Surplus for Year		56,428	270,078
STATUTORY CHARGES & REVERSALS			
Capital Expenditure charged to revenue	11	(53,556)	(144,956)
Investments purchased from revenue	13	-	(144,860)
Reverse profit on asset disposals		(1,500)	(1,700)
Reverse (Profits) on investment disposals		(11,057)	(1,851)
Transfer from Earmarked Reserves	21	40,566	123,192
(Deficit)/Surplus for the Year (from)/to General Fund	_	30,881	99,903
Net (Deficit)/Surplus for the Year	=	(9,685)	(23,289)
The above (Deficit)/Surplus for the Year has been (funded)/applied for the Year (from)/to as follows:			
Transfer from Earmarked Reserves	21	(40,566)	(123,192)
(Deficit)/Surplus for the Year (from)/to General Fund		30,881	99,903
	_	(9,685)	(23,289)

The council had no other recognisable gains and/or losses during the year.

Statement of Movement in Reserves

31 March 2022

]	Net Movement in	
Reserve	Purpose of Reserve	Notes	2022 £	Year £	2021 £
Capital Financing Account	Store of capital resources set aside to purchase fixed assets	18	2,472,545	(39,625)	2,512,170
Investment Financing Accoun	nt Store of capital resources set aside to purchase investments	19	231,728	(4,305)	236,033
Usable Capital Receipts	Proceeds of fixed assets sales available to meet future capital investment	20	15,496	15,362	134
Earmarked Reserves	Amounts set aside from revenue to meet general and specific future expenditure	21	225,253	(40,566)	265,819
General Fund	Resources available to meet future running costs		381,811	30,881	350,930
Total		_	3,326,833	(38,253)	3,365,086

The notes on pages 12 to 20 form part of these unaudited statements.

Balance Sheet

31 March 2022

	Notes	2022 £	2022 £	2021 £
Fixed Assets				
Tangible Fixed Assets	10		3,040,629	3,118,438
Long Term Assets				
Investments Other Than Loans	13		231,728	236,033
Current Assets				
Debtors and prepayments	14	76,438		120,745
Investments	15	500,000		200,681
Cash at bank and in hand		166,055		450,298
	_	742,493		771,724
Current Liabilities				
Creditors and income in advance	16	(114,382)		(149,290)
Net Current Assets			628,111	622,434
Total Assets Less Current Liabilities			3,900,468	3,976,905
Deferred Grants	17		(573,635)	(611,819)
Total Assets Less Liabilities		_	3,326,833	3,365,086
Capital and Reserves				
Capital Financing Reserve	18		2,472,545	2,512,170
Investments Financing Reserve	19		231,728	236,033
Usable Capital Receipts Reserve	20		15,496	134
Earmarked Reserves	21		225,253	265,819
General Reserve			381,811	350,930
		_	3,326,833	3,365,086
		_		

The Unaudited Financial Statements represent a true and fair view of the financial position of the Council as at 31 March 2022, and of its Income and Expenditure for the year.

These accounts were approved by the Council on 27th June 2022.

Signed:		
	Cllr K. E. Craze	Mr G. P. Flexman MBA MSc DMS CiLCA
	Chairman	Responsible Financial Officer
Date:		

Cash Flow Statement

31 March 2022

	Notes	2022 £	2022 £	2021 £
REVENUE ACTIVITIES		-	-	
Cash outflows				
Paid to and on behalf of employees		(556,562)		(504,727)
Other operating payments		(682,985)	_	(425,356)
			(1,239,547)	(930,083)
Cash inflows				
Precept on District Council		1,130,212		1,130,212
Cash received for services		153,569		70,974
Revenue grants received		5,866		25,273
			1,289,647	1,226,459
Net cash inflow from Revenue Activities	24	_	50,100	296,376
SERVICING OF FINANCE				
Cash inflows				
Interest received		464		1,089
Investment Income		3,766		2,190
Net cash inflow from Servicing of Finance			4,230	3,279
CAPITAL ACTIVITIES				
Cash outflows				
Purchase of fixed assets		(56,116)		(146,656)
Purchase of investments		(42,483)		(166,595)
Cash inflows Sale of investments		57.045		21.070
Sale of investments Sale of fixed assets		57,845 1,500		21,869 1,700
		1,300	(20.254)	
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from Capital Activities		_	(39,254)	(289,682)
Net cash inflow before Financing		_	15,076	9,973
FINANCING AND LIQUID RESOURCES				
(Increase) in money on call		_	(299,319)	(422)
(Decrease)/Increase in cash	25	=	(284,243)	9,551

The notes on pages 12 to 20 form part of these unaudited statements.

Notes to the Accounts

31 March 2022

1 Other Costs Analysis

Other Costs reported in the council's Income and Expenditure Account comprise the following:

Direct Service Costs

2022 £	2021 £
254,390	84,793
57,717	54,270
2,539	6,047
5,128	5,029
168,469	146,628
20,411	39,577
3,373	2,333
1,865	1,437
(18,947)	(34,305)
494,945	305,809
	£ 254,390 57,717 2,539 5,128 168,469 20,411 3,373 1,865 (18,947)

Democratic, Management & Civic Costs

2022 £	2021 £
135,895	129,522
-	450
1,792	-
142	1,950
17,376	17,076
155,205	148,998
	£ 135,895 - 1,792 - 142 17,376

As reported in the Statement of Accounting Policies, apportionment of central costs is not reflected in the above analysis.

2 Interest and Investment Income

	2022	2021
	£	£
Interest Income - General Funds	665	1,089
Investment Income	3,766	2,190
	4,431	3,279

3 Agency Work

During the year the Council undertook no agency work on behalf of other authorities.

During the year the Council commissioned no agency work to be performed by other authorities.

Notes to the Accounts

31 March 2022

4 Related Party Transactions

The council entered into no material transactions with related parties during the year.

5 Audit Fees

The council is required to report and disclose the cost of services provided by its external auditors.

These may be summarised as follows:

	2022	2021
	£	£
Fees for statutory audit services	2,000	2,000
Total fees	2,000	2,000

6 General Power of Competence

With effect from 19th May 2015 New Milton Town Council acquired the right to exercise the General Power of Competence extended to Town and Parish Councils under the Localism Act 2011 by S.I. 2012 No 965 (The Parish Councils (General Power of Competence) (Prescribed Conditions) Order 2012). Therefore, with effect from 19th May 2015 the council no longer exercises the powers conveyed by Section 137 of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended).

7 Members' Allowances

	2022	2021
	£	£
Members of Council have been paid the following allowances for the year:		
Mayors Allowance	142	1,950
Members Allowance	17,376	17,076
	17,518	19,026

8 Employees

The average weekly number of employees during the year was as follows:

	2022 Number	2021 Number
Full-time	10	10
Part-time	4	5
Temporary	2	2
	16	17

All staff are paid in accordance with nationally agreed pay scales.

Notes to the Accounts

31 March 2022

9 Pension Costs

The council participates in the Hampshire County Council Pension Scheme. The Hampshire County Council Pension Scheme is a defined benefit scheme, but the council is unable to identify its share of the underlying assets and liabilities because all town and parish councils in the scheme pay a common contribution rate.

The cost to the council for the year ended 31 March 2022 was £80,760 (31 March 2021 - £70,562).

The most recent actuarial valuation was carried out as at 31st March 2019, and the council's contribution rate is confirmed as being 21.40% of employees' employees' pay. with effect from 1st April 2022 (year ended 31 March 2022 – 18.90%.).

Financial Reporting Standard 102 (FRS102): "Retirement Benefits" sets out accounting requirements for pension costs. For schemes such as Hampshire County Council Pension Scheme, paragraph 9(b) of FRS102 requires the council to account for pension costs on the basis of contributions actually payable to the scheme during the year.

10 Tangible Fixed Assets

	Operational Freehold Land and Buildings	Vehicles and Equipment	Infra-structure Assets	Community Assets	Total
Cost	£	£	£	£	£
At 31 March 2021	4,079,890	820,666	194,331	112,442	5,207,329
Additions	-	34,951	20,105	-	55,056
Disposals		(2,305)	-	-	(2,305)
At 31 March 2022	4,079,890	853,312	214,436	112,442	5,260,080
Depreciation					
At 31 March 2021	(1,397,187)	(574,349)	(117,355)	-	(2,088,891)
Charged for the year	(80,750)	(39,718)	(12,397)	-	(132,865)
Eliminated on disposal		2,305	-	-	2,305
At 31 March 2022	(1,477,937)	(611,762)	(129,752)	-	(2,219,451)
Net Book Value					
At 31 March 2022	2,601,953	241,550	84,684	112,442	3,040,629
At 31 March 2021	2,682,703	246,317	76,976	112,442	3,118,438

Although classified as capital expenditure, certain minor equipment purchases are not included in the above as they are not material in overall value.

Fixed Asset Valuation

The freehold and leasehold properties that comprise the council's properties have been valued as at 31st March 2002 by external independent valuers, Messrs Zurich Municipal Insurance. Valuations have been made on the basis set out in the Statement of Accounting Policies, except that not all properties were inspected. This was neither practical nor considered by the valuer to be necessary for the purpose of valuation. Plant and machinery that form fixtures to the building are included in the valuation of the building.

Notes to the Accounts

31 March 2022

11 Financing of Capital Expenditure

	2022 £	2021 £
The following capital expenditure during the year:	~	~
Fixed Assets Purchased	55,056	146,656
	55,056	146,656
was financed by:		
Capital Receipts	1,500	1,700
Revenue:		
Precept and Revenue Income	53,556	144,956
	55,056	146,656

12 Information on Assets Held

Fixed assets owned by the council include the following:

Operational Land and Buildings

6 Pavilions at 4 recreation grounds

Workshops and stores

Vehicles and Equipment

Light Vans

Play Equipment at 7 sites

Skatepark

Multi-use games area

Sundry grounds maintenance equipment

Sundry office equipment

Infrastructure Assets

Lighting and Floodlighting

Trail Bollards

Jubilee Wall

Multi Use Games Area

Other street furniture

Community Assets

Allotments – 5 sites

Recreation grounds - 5

Play areas and open spaces

War Memorial

Council Artefacts & Regalia

Notes to the Accounts

31 March 2022

13 Investments

	Investments Other Than Loans
Cost	£
At 01 April 2021	236,033
Additons	42,483
Disposals	(46,788)
At 31 March 2022	231,728
Amounts Written Off	
At 31 March 2022	
Net Book Value	
At 31 March 2022	231,728
	231,728
	
At 01 April 2021	236,033
	236,033

At 31 March 2022 the investments included above at a cost of £231,728 had a market value of £271,850 (31 March 2021 - £282,521).

14 Debtors

	2022 £	2021 £
Debtors	49,762	79,648
Provision for Doubtful Debts	(1,088)	(11,509)
Trade Debtors	48,674	68,139
VAT Recoverable	18,605	26,180
Other Debtors	(1)	-
Prepayments	391	15,493
Accrued Income	8,568	10,933
Accrued Interest Income	201	<u>-</u>
	76,438	120,745

15 Current Asset Investments

	2022 £	2021 £
		200,681
CCLA Public Sector Deposit Account\NatWest Term Deposit	500,000	
	500,000	200,681

Notes to the Accounts

31 March 2022

16 Creditors and Accrued Expenses

	2022	2021
Trade Creditors	£ 42,171	£ 75,318
Other Creditors	260	274
Superannuation Payable	8,528	7,838
Payroll Taxes and Social Security	12,752	8,604
Accruals	36,732	40,136
Income in Advance	4,895	7,016
Capital Creditors	9,044	10,104
	114,382	149,290
17 Deferred Grants		
	2022	2021
	£	£
Capital Grants Unapplied		
At 01 April	5,551	5,551
At 31 March	5,551	5,551
Capital Grants Applied		
At 01 April	606,268	644,452
Released to offset depreciation	(38,184)	(38,184)
At 31 March	568,084	606,268
Total Deferred Grants		
At 31 March	573,635	611,819
At 01 April	611,819	650,003

Capital Grants are accounted for on an accruals basis and grants received have been credited to Deferred Grants Account. Amounts are released from the Deferred Grants Account to offset any provision for depreciation charged to revenue accounts in respect of assets that were originally acquired with the assistance of such grants.

Notes to the Accounts

31 March 2022

18 Capital Financing Account

	2022 £	2021 £
Balance at 01 April	2,512,170	2,455,871
Financing capital expenditure in the year		
Additions - using capital receipts	1,500	1,700
Additions - using revenue balances	53,556	144,956
Disposal of fixed assets	(2,305)	(4,711)
Depreciation eliminated on disposals	2,305	4,711
Reversal of depreciation	(132,865)	(128,541)
Deferred grants released	38,184	38,184
Balance at 31 March	2,472,545	2,512,170

The Capital Financing Account represents revenue and capital resources applied to finance capital expenditure or for the repayment of external loans. It also includes the reversal of depreciation to ensure it does not impact upon the amount to be met from precept. It does not represent a reserve that the council can use to support future expenditure.

19 Financial Instruments Financing Account

	2022	2021
	£	£
Balance at 01 April	236,033	89,456
Financing Investment Purchases in the year		
Additions - using capital receipts	42,483	21,735
Additions - using revenue balances	-	144,860
Disposal of investments	(46,788)	(20,018)
Balance at 31 March	231,728	236,033

The Financial Instruments Financing Account represents revenue and capital resources applied to finance the purchase of Available for Sale Investments , less provisions for losses below the original cost of the applicable investment, and the entries necessary to adjust loans made at less than market rates of interest to a Fair Value as reported in the Balance Sheet. It does not represent a reserve that the council can use to support future expenditure.

20 Usable Capital Receipts Reserve

	2022	2021
	£	£
Balance at 01 April	134	-
Capital receipts (asset sales) during the year	1,500	1,700
Capital receipts (investment sales)	57,845	21,869
Less:		
Capital used to fund expenditure	(43,983)	(23,435)
Balance at 31 March	15,496	134

The Usable Capital Receipts Reserve represents capital receipts available to finance capital expenditure in future years.

Notes to the Accounts

31 March 2022

21 Earmarked Reserves

	Balance at	Contribution	Contribution	Balance at
	01/04/2021	to reserve	from reserve	31/03/2022
	£	£	£	£
Capital Projects Reserves	113,967	-	(91,000)	22,967
Asset Renewal Reserves	-	-	-	-
Other Earmarked Reserves	151,852	66,397	(15,963)	202,286
Total Earmarked Reserves	265,819	66,397	(106,963)	225,253

The Capital Projects Reserves are credited with amounts amounts set aside from revenue to part finance specific projects which are part of the council's capital programme.

The Other Earmarked Reserves are credited with amounts set aside from revenue to fund specific known commitments of the council.

The Other Earmarked Reserves at 31 March 2022 are set out in detail at Appendix A.

22 Capital Commitments

The council had no capital commitments at 31 March 2022 not otherwise provided for in these accounts.

23 Contingent Liabilities

The council is not aware of any contingent liabilities at the date of these accounts.

24 Reconciliation of Revenue Cash Flow

	2022	2021
Net Operating Surplus for the year Add/(Deduct)	£ 43,871	£ 266,527
Interest and Investment Income	(4,230)	(3,279)
Decrease/(Increase) in debtors	44,307	(49,221)
(Decrease)/Increase in creditors	(33,848)	82,349
Revenue activities net cash inflow	50,100	296,376

Notes to the Accounts

31 March 2022

25 Movement in Cash

23 Movement in Cash	2022 £	2021 £
Balances at 01 April		
Cash with accounting officers	18	251
Cash at bank	450,280	440,496
	450,298	440,747
Balances at 31 March		
Cash with accounting officers	212	18
Cash at bank	165,843	450,280
	166,055	450,298
Net cash (outflow)/inflow	(284,243)	9,551

26 Post Balance Sheet Events

There are no significant Post Balance Sheet events since the preparation of these accounts, up to the date of their final adoption (on 27th June 2022), which would have a material impact on the amounts and results reported herein.

Appendices

31 March 2022

		Appendix A
Contribution to reserve £	Contribution from reserve £	Balance at 31/03/2022 £
00		150,000
00	(91,000)	109,000
3)		(236,033)
67 ((91,000)	22,967
		0
0 (0	0
00		5,000
73 5,000)	10,473
20 23,860	(15,963)	25,917
28		25,328
68		15,168
27		20,327
18		57,218
18 20,561		25,879
16,976	5	16,976
52 66 397	(15.963)	202,286
00,371	(13,703)	202,200
19 66,397	(106,963)	225,253
0 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3	1 to reserve £ 1000 000 000 333) 067 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	1 to reserve £ from reserve £ £ 2000 2000 (91,000) 2007 200 (91,000) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

31 March 2022

Annual Report Tables

Table. 1 – Budget & Actual Comparison

	Budget £	Actual £
Net Expenditure		
Recreation & Sport	31,066	199,333
Open Spaces	25,814	37,569
Community Safety (Crime Reduction)	5,500	5,128
Planning & Development Services (including Markets)	502,885	474,804
Highways Roads (Routine)	2,342	(3,259)
Investment Activities	_	1,865
Net Direct Services Costs	567,607	715,440
Corporate Management	410,605	356,022
Democratic & Civic	24,500	19,310
Net Democratic, Management and Civic Costs	435,105	375,332
Interest & Investment Income	(2,500)	(4,431)
Capital Expenditure	130,000	97,539
Proceeds of Disposal of Capital Assets	-	(59,345)
Transfers to/(from) other reserves	-	(25,204)
(Deficit from)/Surplus to General Reserve	-	30,881
Precept on District Council	1,130,212	1,130,212

31 March 2022

Annual Report Tables

Table. 2 – Service Income & Expenditure

Note	es 2022 £	2022 £	2022 £	2021 £
	Gross Expenditure	Income	Net Expenditure	Net Expenditure
CULTURAL & RELATED SERVICES	1			
Recreation & Sport	254,390	(55,057)	199,333	35,665
Open Spaces	60,256	(22,687)	37,569	37,168
ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES				
Community Safety (Crime Reduction)	5,128	-	5,128	5,029
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT SERVICES				
Economic Development (including markets)	466,837	(6,578)	460,259	393,593
Community Development	20,411	(5,866)	14,545	30,077
HIGHWAYS, ROADS & TRANSPORT SERVICES				
Highways Roads (Routine)	3,373	(6,632)	(3,259)	(3,000)
OTHER SERVICES				
Investment Activities	1,865	-	1,865	1,437
CENTRAL SERVICES				
Corporate Management	398,927	(42,905)	356,022	348,762
Democratic & Civic	-	-	-	450
Civic Expenses	19,310		19,310	17,783
Net Cost of Services	1,230,497	(139,725)	1,090,772	866,964



Internal Audit Report 2021-22 (Final Update)

Claire Lingard Consultant Auditor

For and on behalf of Auditing Solutions Ltd

Background

Statute requires all town and parish councils to arrange for an independent internal audit examination of their accounting records and system of internal control and for the conclusions to be reported each year in the Annual Return.

This report sets out the work undertaken in relation to the Internal Audit process for the 2021-22 financial year; the Interim review which took place on the 28th & 29th October 2021 and supplemented by the Final Update review of the year which took place on the 6th & 7th June 2022.

Internal Audit Approach

In concluding our review for the year, we have again had regard to the materiality of transactions and their susceptibility to potential mis recording or misrepresentation in the year-end Statement of Accounts / Annual Return. Our programme of cover, which has been modified in light of the Covid-19 directives under which Councils are required to operate, is designed to afford appropriate assurance that the Council has appropriate and robust financial systems in place that operate in a manner to ensure effective probity of transactions and to afford a reasonable probability of identifying any material errors or possible abuse of the Council's own and the national statutory regulatory framework. The programme is also designed to facilitate our completion of the 'Internal Audit Report' as part of the Council's Annual Governance and Accountability Return process, which requires independent assurance over a number of internal control objectives.

Overall Conclusions

We have followed up the suggestions and formal recommendations made in our FY2020-21 and FY2021-22 Interim Review reports and acknowledge that the members have noted and considered these in their deliberations and have implemented these as appropriate. The Council has continued to make significant business processes and performance improvements, even in these challenging times. We have again reviewed the Council's modified practices implemented to comply with the Government's Covid-19 directives, and report that, on the basis of the work undertaken to date in the current year, the Council continues to operate robust and effective internal controls in all areas examined to date. Resultantly, only one recommendation for improvement have been made which are detailed in the main body of this report and the appended Action Plan.

We have noted that the Council's continued compliance with the Government's public health directives as amended from time to time, maintaining a consistently high standard of service provision to its constituents. The Council has continued to take all reasonable steps to ensure the health and safety of its Staff, Members, Clients and members of the public utilising the Council's facilities. All modified and exceptional working practices have been formally Reviewed, Resolved and Recorded in the Council's Minutes and detailed in its comprehensive Risk Registers. The Clerk/RFO and his team are to be complimented on the exceptional and exemplary performance of New Milton Town Council during both the pandemic and the recovery phase which is now in progress.

Once again, we commend the Clerk/RFO, Assistant Clerk and their team for their continued professional management and administration of the Council's finance, governance and delivery functions, we also commend the Members for their continued efforts in maintaining services and providing assistance for their constituents during these challenging times. As in previous years, the requested audit files and associated documentation were presented for audit in timely and professional manner by the Clerk/RFO and the Assistant Clerk, making this remote interim review a relatively straightforward process.

We ask that members consider the content of this report and acknowledge that the report has been formally reviewed and adopted by Council.

This report has been prepared for the sole use of New Milton Town Council. To the fullest extent permitted by law, no responsibility or liability is accepted by Auditing Solutions Ltd to any third party who purports to use or rely, for any reason whatsoever, on this report, its contents or conclusions.

Detailed Report

Review of Accounting Records & Bank Reconciliations

Our objective here is to ensure that the accounting records are being maintained accurately and currently and that no anomalous entries appear in cashbooks or financial ledgers. The Council uses the Omega accounting software to maintain its accounting records, which also provides the basis for preparation of the year-end Statement of Accounts and Annual Return. The services of external contact accountants (DCKs) are employed to maintain the day-to-day accounting records and prepare the year-end detailed Statement of Accounts / Annual Return data. We have to date: -

- Verified that an appropriate cost centre and nominal ledger structure remains in place for 2021-22;
- Agreed the opening Trial Balance in the accounting software for 2021-22 to the closing Financial Statements for 2020-21 to ensure that all the detailed balances have been properly rolled forward;
- ➤ Checked and agreed four sample months' receipts and payments transactions (April and September 2021, and December & March 2022) from all NatWest accounts, including the daily "sweep" transfers, to the relevant Omega cash books;
- Noted that the Council's decision to close the National Westminster Bank 35 Day account, effective the 10th September 2021, with the residual balance being transferred into the National Westminster Bank Current Account on the same date;
- ➤ Noted the Council's decision to close the National Westminster Bank 95 Day account, effective the 30th November 2021, with the residual balance being transferred into the National Westminster Bank Current Account on the same date;
- Noted the contents of the latest Quilter Cheviot investment report, covering the period from the to the 31st March 2022 confirming total funds invested in the amount of £317,182;
- Noted that the Council has, as per the recommendations in our prior year internal audit report, taken action to diversify its investments, to ensure as far as it is possible to do so, that the council's funds are protected whilst generating a reasonable rate of return;
- Noted that the Council has opened a CCLA (Churches, Charities and Local Authorities) PSDF (Public Sector Deposit Fund) account with the intention of transferring the half-year Precept payment directly into this account. The Account balance as at the 31st March 2022 stood at £500,000;
- ➤ Noted that the Council is in the process of opening a separate CCLA PSDF in respect of the 'ring-fenced' funds it holds on behalf of the New Milton Youth Trust; and,
- Checked and verified the Rialtas bank reconciliations, for all the Council's accounts as at the 30th April, 30th September and the 31st December 2021 and the 31st March 2021 to ensure that there are no long-standing, uncleared items or other another anomalous entries arising.

Conclusion

There are no matters arising during this area of our review warranting further comment or recommendation.

Review of Corporate Governance

Our objective is to ensure that the Council has robust corporate governance documentation and processes in place, and that, as far as we may reasonably be expected to ascertain (as we do not attend Council or Committee meetings) all meetings are conducted in accordance with the adopted Standing Orders and no actions of a potentially unlawful nature have been or are being considered for implementation. We have: -

- Noted that the Council received an Unqualified Audit Certificate from the External Auditors on the 19th September 2021,
- ➤ Reviewed the Full Council and Standing Committee minutes (except Planning) for the financial year to the 31st March 2022 to ensure that no issues affecting the Council's financial stability either in the short, medium or long term exist;
- Noted that the Council last reviewed and re-adopted its revised combined Standing Orders and Financial Regulations in the 16th March 2020 meeting of the Full Town Council; revision number 15;
- Noted that the Council confirmed that it continued to meet the criteria to avail itself of the General Power of Competence, and Resolved to readopt the General Power of Competence for FY 2021-22 during the Annual Meeting of the Town Council on the 5th May 2021 under Minute reference 9;
- ➤ Noted that the Council's website has now been redeveloped, is fully compliant with the prevailing Accessibility legislation and is very easy for visitors to use and readily access information;
- Noted that the Council correctly provided the proper opportunity for the Exercise of Public Rights in accordance with the requirements of the Accounts and Audit Regulations for the examination of the 2020-21 financial year financial statements and supporting documents;
- Noted that the Council has reviewed its Health & Safety and Business Risk Registers on an ongoing basis throughout the year, due to the evolving Covid-19 situation and continues to do so in order to fully comply with government directives which are amended from time to time. The Risk Strategy was Endorsed at the 26th July meeting of the F&GP Committee under Minute reference 31, with the recommendation for the Adoption and Approval made to the Full Council;
- Noted that the Clerk/RFO and Assistant Clerk continue to take all reasonable steps to ensure the Council's immediate and ongoing compliance with the General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR). This includes, but is not limited to, arranging secure offsite cloud backup facilities, the ongoing development of new Information & Data Protection and Privacy policies, the provision of dedicated Council e-mail addresses for all council members and administration staff, and the amendment of forms and e-mails to ensure users of the council's services are aware of what data will be retained and the Council's Privacy Policy.

It should be noted that in common with all Councils in England and Wales, the past twenty-months of New Milton Town Council's operations have been significantly impacted by the Government's public-health directives in relation to Covid-19 which have been continuously amended. The Council has continued to deliver its services and many of its amenities to a high standard during this time.

We have noted the Chairman's report, delivered at the Annual Meeting of the Town Council, and the Minutes of the Full Council and all its standing committees (with the exception of the Planning Committee which is beyond the remit of the Internal Audit process) and have found that New Milton Town Council has continued to place the public health and well-being of its constituents at the heart of its Neighbourhood Plan.

The Council's youth services continue to be amongst the best in the New Forest. Additionally, the play and recreation areas in the Council's control provide sports and leisure facilities for all age groups in the town. All these facilities have been subject to regular risk review during the ongoing public health situation.

We further note that the Doe Copse Way play area has now been upgraded and the Ashley play area, with the addition of a co-located indoor youth facility is in the process of being updated. Projects which have been meticulously planned with direct input from the Council's constituents.

The Council continues to support several initiatives promoting local business and shopping areas, including the Gold award wining spring and summer floral displays and the Christmas Lights. Additionally, the Council now manages the "Go New Milton" website which promotes local shops and businesses.

All the initiatives undertaken by the Council have been undertaken with the Council's Main and Corona Virus Risk Assessments with the public health & safety being of paramount importance.

In relation to the Council's forward planning, we note that the Clerk/RFO and Members have made all reasonable efforts to implement the recommendations made in our prior year reports and continue to undertake a thorough budgetary process (which is commented on later in this report), and focus on the provision of services to constituents and the promotion of New Milton as a shopping destination and business friendly town.

Face to face Council meetings have now resumed. However, the Clerk/RFO and Members have taken measures to ensure that Video and Hybrid meetings can be held, should the public health situation require such measures, to ensure that the democratic process is maintained and available to the widest audience possible.

Modified working practices are still in place for frontline staff, with office-based employees working on an office / home based rota, ensuring the delivery of essential services for residents and local businesses and supporting the work of our ground-staff.

The Clerk & Members have continuously demonstrated a prudent approach to financial management that will assist the New Milton community as the public-health restrictions are rolled-back. It should also be noted that despite the additional demands placed on the council, its operational targets have been largely met, with major new projects being delivered in the first half of the 2021-22 financial year.

Conclusions

There is only one matter arising in this area of our interim review warranting formal comment or recommendation:

During the review of the Minutes of the Full Council and its Standing Committees we identified that 'Any other items' and 'Any other matters' being permitted to be discussed in both the Finance & General Purpose Committee and the Amenities Committee.

Finance & General Purpose Committee

Date 26/04 15/06 27/07	Ref: MR 261 MR 17 MR 32	Business recorded Any Other Matters Any Other Matters
27/07	MR 32	Any Other Matters
20/09	MR 48	Any Other Matters

Amenities Committee

Date	Ref:	Business recorded
01/06	MR 14	Any Other Matters
13/07	MR 31	Any Other Items
07/09	MR 48	Any Other Items
18/10	MR 68	Any Other Items

This is a matter, which we have commented on in prior years, had been resolved, and has now crept back into usage. We therefore repeat the guidance and recommendation originally made in our Interim Internal Audit report of the 2nd October 2018:

We note from our review of the Council's Minutes that items of business that are not published on the Agenda, variously described as 'Any other matters' or 'Any other items' are being recorded in the Council's minutes and that items of business that have not been published on the Agenda have been discussed and minuted as such. We also note that we have previously commented on this practice and recognise that the Clerk has already drawn Members attention to the issue, that this is not a permitted practice, and has minuted this fact. It is disappointing, therefore that Members have re-engaged in this practice.

Members are remined that unless an item of business is published on the corresponding meeting Agenda then it may not, under any circumstances be discussed. This is irrespective of the perceived urgency of, or the Member'(s)' interest in the matter. Members are acting unlawfully if they discuss items of business that have not been published on the corresponding meeting Agenda, and such actions have the potential to leave Members and the Council to unwarranted allegations of impropriety.

We shall extend our analysis of the Minutes of the Council and its Standing Committees during the year-end review.

R1. Only items of business published on Agenda may be discussed at the corresponding meetings of the Council or its Standing Committees. **Noted.**

Review of Expenditure

Our aim here is to ensure that: -

- Council resources are released in accordance with the Council's approved procedures and budgets;
- Payments are supported by appropriate documentation, either in the form of an original trade invoice or other appropriate form of document confirming the payment as due and/or an acknowledgement of receipt, where no other form of invoice is available;
- > An official order has been raised for all purchases and service delivery where one would be expected;
- > All discounts due on goods and services supplied are identified and appropriate action taken to secure the discount;
- > The correct expense codes have been applied to invoices when processed; and

> VAT has been appropriately identified and coded to the control account for periodic recovery.

We have concluded our examination of payments for compliance with the above criteria, selecting a sample of 87 payments in total (42 payments examined to the 30th September 2021). Our sample comprises all payments individually above £3,000, together with every 30th cashbook transaction (irrespective of value) totalling £477,411 and equating to approximately 56% of all non-pay expenditure processed to the above date with no issues arising.

We note that during the financial year to 31st March 2022, the Council has gone out to tender/competitive quotations for three major schemes:

1) Ashley Play Area redevelopment

Four play constructors (Hags, Kompan, Playdale and Streetscape) were asked to tender for the replacement of the existing and dated play area and ancillary works required thereto. The tenders were reviewed and evaluated by the Ashley Working Party (consisting of Officers & Members) and it was unanimously decided that the tender from HAGS at £95,000 offered the best play experience for the age range of potential users, whilst also offering best value. The decision was ratified by the Amenities and F&GP Committees and approved by the Full Town Council before the order was placed.

NB: New Forest District Council have allocated circa £260k of developers funds to the Ashley Play Area redevelopment.

2) Reconstruction and resurfacing of the recreation ground play area

Four approved contractors (Redlynch-Lappset, Vitaplay, Abacus and DCM) were approached to tender for the reconstruction and resurfacing of the recreation ground play area. The tenders again were evaluated with DCM deemed to be offering best value and high quality of their work was known to us from a previous successful contract. The decision to award the order to DCM was endorsed by all the Amenities and F&GP Committees and approved by the Full Town Council before an order was placed.

3) Contract for the replacement of the existing sodium floodlights for LED lighting at Fawcetts Field Sports Ground

Three companies were able meet the criteria and were asked to quote, these being ATECH Electrical, Highlights Limited and Lights For Sport/ECO Club. ECO Club was awarded the contract, endorsed by all the Amenities and F&GP Committees and approved by the Full Town Council before an order was placed.

We note that VAT returns continue to be submitted electronically each quarter, in compliance with the HMRC's 'Making Tax Digital' initiative and have examined the first two quarter's VAT reclaim submissions, ensuring that each was in accord with the Omega control account balances, with no issues arising.

Conclusions

There are no matters arising in this area of our review warranting further comment or recommendation.

Review of Assessment and Management of Risk

Our aim here is to ensure that the Council has put in place appropriate arrangements to identify all potential areas of risk of both a financial and health and safety nature, whilst also ensuring that appropriate arrangements exist to monitor and manage those risks in order to minimise the opportunity for their coming to fruition. Consequently, we:

- Noted that the Council's insurance cover continues to be provided by Zurich, the current year's policy schedule running to 31st March 2022: Public Liability cover remains set at £15 million; Employer's Liability at £10 million; Fidelity Guarantee at £2 million, Hirers' Liability at £2 million, Libel & Slander at £250K and Business Interruption cover at £66,000 per premises, all of which we consider appropriate for the Council's present requirements;
- Noted that the Council's Risk Management Strategy remains robust with Risk Registers reviewed on an ongoing basis throughout the year and new Risk Registers specifically developed to provide Risk Mitigation strategies for the Covid-19 situation which is continuously evolving.
- Noted that the Council's Health & Safety and Business Risk Assessment Registers for 2020-21 continue to be maintained in LCRS software. The Registers were, as in previous years revised and then reviewed at the Finance & General Purpose Committee with the Endorsement to be Recommended to Full Council for Approval. The Council's 2021 Financial, and Health & Safety Risk Registers were formally adopted at the 29th March 2021 meeting of the Full Town Council under Minute reference 238.

The Council's 2021-22 financial year Risk Strategy and supporting Registers were Endorsed at the 26th July 2021 meeting of the F&GP Committee under Minute reference 31, and subsequently Approved and Adopted at the meeting of the Full Town Council of the 9th August 2021 under Minute reference 46.

Reviewed the Council's arrangements for the regular inspection of playgrounds and recreational areas, noting that Zurich Insurance inspect the playgrounds monthly, making recommendations for replacement, repair and general maintenance. Additionally, the Council's play areas, MUGA and skatepark are visually inspected weekly by members of the Estates Team who have been trained and are qualified to carry out weekly visual inspections. These inspections are recorded, and hard copies kept on file and also electronically stored in their own folder on the Town Council shared drive.

Any minor repairs required as a result of inspections are carried out by the Council's nominated and certified sub-contractor 'Vitaplay'. Any equipment or area deemed to be in need of a major repair and/or presents a potential health and safety risk is taken out of service immediately until a full repair can be undertaken. All play areas, the MUGA and Skatepark are fully inspected annually, generally in July, by the Play Inspection Company.

We noted that the Council had reopened its playgrounds and recreation areas, in compliance with the Government's current public health directives as amended, having taken formal Risk Assessments and reasonable and appropriate Risk Mitigation strategies implemented as at the date of the Interim Review.

Finally, in this area of our review and as an adjunct to the above, we have noted that the Town Council now organises and holds Play Inspector Courses carried out by qualified instructors. These courses are open to employees of other government and not for profit entities. To date, New Milton Town Council has hosted course delegates form organisations including New Forest District Council, Lymington, Pennington Town

Council, Horsham Town Council, Warminster Town Council, and the Fleet Air Arm Museum Yeovilton.

Holding these sessions has enabled New Milton Town Council to train members of the Estates Team at net neutral cost, as the course fees have been offset by the income received from running the course, which is a benefit both to the Council and its Constituents and is, in this auditor's opinion, an exemplary initiative.

Conclusions

There are no matters arising in this area of our review warranting formal comment or recommendation.

Review of Budgetary Control & Reserves

Our objective here is to ensure that the Council has a robust procedure in place for identifying and approving its future budgetary requirements and level of precept to be drawn down from New Forest District Council: also, that an effective reporting and monitoring process is in place. We also aim to ensure that the Council retains appropriate funds in general and earmarked reserves to finance its ongoing spending plans, whilst retaining appropriate sums to cover any unplanned expenditure that might arise. We have:-

Noted that the Council formally Approved the Budget and Precept for the 2022-23 financial year in the amount of £1,130,212 at the 4th January 2022 meeting of the Full Town Council under Minute reference 94;

"The Town Council element of Council Tax will be £111.67 next year for average Band "D" properties in New Milton. This equates to £2.15 per week per average household and compares favourably with other town and parish councils in the district."

- ➤ Noted that the Council's actual expenditure to the 31st March 2022 is broadly in line with its budgetary projections for the financial year;
- ➤ The Council continues to conduct a robust Budget setting and Precept determination process, against a pre-agreed schedule of planning and review meetings, which had just commenced and was ongoing at the time of the Interim Internal Audit. and,
- ➤ We note that members continue to be provided with detail of the current budgetary performance at the monthly meetings of the Finance and General Purposes Committee.

Finally, in this area of our review, we have considered the appropriateness of the retained reserves, based on the DCK detailed statement of accounts, to meet the ongoing spending requirements of the Council.

The Council's retained reserves at 31st March 2022 stood at £632,878 (622,434 prior-year) including £225,253 (£265,819 prior-year) in earmarked reserves leaving a General Reserve balance of £407,625 (£365,615 prior-year). This equates to approximately four months expenditure reserves based on the average monthly expenditure during the 2021-22 financial year. This is sits comfortably at the upper level of the CiPFA (Chartered Institute of Public Finance Accountants) guidance to retain between three and six months of revenue expenditure as General Reserve Funds.

Conclusion

There are no matters arising in this area of the Final Update review warranting formal comment or recommendation.

Review of Income

In considering the Council's income streams, we aim to ensure that robust systems are in place to ensure the identification of all income due to the Council from its various sources, to ensure that the invoice is submitted in a timely manner and that effective procedures are in place to pursue recovery of any outstanding monies due to the Council. We note that, in addition to the Precept, the Council continues to receive income from a variety of sources including sports field hire, allotment rents, property leases, market stall rents, investment interest, recovered VAT, sundry wayleaves, sponsorship, grants and CIL monies.

As with all Council's throughout the UK, New Milton's income steam has been impacted by the mandatory 'lockdowns' imposed by Central Government in relation to the Covid-19 situation and is now exhibiting what may be described as a typical 'recovery curve' in relation to third party bookings:

- ➤ We have noted that the Council undertook a formal review of its fees and charges during the prior-year budget setting process, with increases approved accordingly for the 2020-21 financial year;
- ➤ We have checked and agreed all receipts recorded in Cashbook 1 to the corresponding Bank Statements for the months of April, September & December 2021 and March 2022;
- ➤ We have reviewed all invoices and receipts pertaining to Sales Receipts as entered on Cashbook 1, month four, ensuring that the fees charged were in accord with the published scales with no undue delays identified in settlement by customers;
- ➤ We have checked and verified the receipt of Allotment Rental payments for the 2021-22 financial year, and,
- We have reviewed the way in which cash and cheque receipts are recorded for banking for the financial year to 31st March 2022 with no issues arising.

Conclusions

There are no matters arising in this area of our review warranting formal comment or recommendation at this time.

Review of Petty Cash Accounts

The Council operates a limited petty cash account, topped up "as and when" with periodic cheque re-imbursements (generally of £250 each). The DCK contractor maintains appropriate Excel based control sheets to analyse the expenditure for posting to Omega.

We have checked and agreed four sample month's transactions, July, September, and December 2021 and March 2022, to ensure that each payment was supported by relevant supplier invoices / till receipts and that the expenditure was appropriate for the Council's activities with no issues arising. To this end, we have checked and verified the DCK produced and approved Petty Cash reconciliation reports, which have been endorsed in the Management Accounts by the F&GP Committee and which have been certified by the Clerk/RFO.

We agree the 31st March 2022 Petty Cash reconciliation as at the 31st March 2022 in the amount of £212.19.

Conclusions

There are no matters arising in this area of our review warranting formal comment or recommendation.

Review of Salaries

In examining the Council's payroll function, we aim to confirm that extant legislation is being appropriately observed as regards adherence to the Employee Rights Act 1998 and the requirements of HM Revenue and Customs (HMRC) legislation as regards the deduction and payment over of income tax and NI contributions, together with meeting the requirements of the LGPS (further revised with effect from 1st April 2020 as regards employee contribution percentage bandings).

The Council continues to outsource the production of its monthly payroll to its contractor accountants: we have examined the July 2021, which included payroll payments to 17 councillors in relation to their emolument payments, 11 grounds staff and 7 office staff; thirty-five payroll payments in total. We have: -

- > Noted that the Council's payroll function continues to be outsourced to DK Accounting Solutions;
- Ensured that the Council has approved employee pay rates for the Financial Year, ensuring that these were correctly applied;
- Ensured that appropriate PAYE tax codes are being applied to both employees and members' allowances;
- ➤ Checked and verified all Timesheets for the July 2021 pay period had been correctly tabulated, transcribed and authorised and that the corresponding variable pay had been paid at the correct overtime rate;
- > Ensured that NI deductions were computed accurately based on the current "tables";
- > Ensured that the correct percentage superannuation deductions, based on the revised LGPS, are being applied where appropriate; and,
- > Verified that net salary payments have been made to staff appropriately and been recorded accurately in the accounting records, noting that all salary and members' allowance payments continue to be made by BACS.

Conclusions

There are no matters arising in this area of our review warranting formal comment or recommendation.

Review of Fixed Asset Registers

The Governance and Accountability Manual requires all Councils to develop and maintain a comprehensive register of all assets owned and leased by the Council. In this area, we aim to ensure that such a register is in place and contains all the basic information that should, ideally, be embodied in the records.

We have previously noted that a very detailed register of the Council's land, properties and other assets is maintained, and this continues to be the case for the current year. Additionally, for the purposes of the Statements of Account and Annual Return, reliance is placed upon the schedules prepared by the contract accountants, and we have during this final update review, been provided with copies of the schedules for 2021-22 financial year.

During the prior year Final Update Internal Audit we certified that the Council's Fixed Asset Register accurately recorded all acquisitions and disposals during the 2021-22 financial year declaring a total value of £5,491,808 (£5,443,362 prior-year).

Conclusions

There are no matters arising in this area of our review warranting formal comment or recommendation.

Review of Investments and Loans

We have noted that the Council continues to maintain a detailed Investment Strategy and policy.

Account	Cashbook Number	Reconciled Value as at 30-09-21
Current Account	CB1	£2,500.00
First Reserve Account 1	CB2	£00.28
Business Reserve Account 2	CB3	£6,658.34
Special Interest Bearing Account 3	CB5	£123,507.00
35 Day Account (Closed)	CB6	£0.00
95 Day Account (Closed)	CB7	
		£0.00 Total £132,665.62

As at the 31st March 2022 the Council holds surplus finds, totalling circa £132,666, as indicated in the table above, (£1,225,022 as at the 30th September 2022). The detail of each account has been checked and verified against the prime documentation, i.e. bank statements as at the 31st March 2021, cashbook entries and corresponding bank reconciliations.

We note that in an effort to streamline the Council's banking services, that the National Westminster Bank 35 and 95 day accounts have been closed and the residual funds swept from the current account to the First Reserve Account for onward transfer.

The Clerk/RFO and Members are to be congratulated on reducing the funds invested with the National Westminster Bank not covered by the Government's Financial Services Compensation Scheme from £1,140,022 as at the 30th September 2021 to £47,666 as at the 31st March 2022.

We further note that the Council has made continuous progress towards achieving the objective of ensuring that the Council's deposits are de-risked to the extent that it is possible to do so. To this end, the Council has opened a CCLA PSDF Account on the 17th September 2021, and that the funds balance as at the 31st March 2021 stood at £500,000.

The Council also holds a share portfolio investment with Quilter Cheviot which has decreased in value by £17.696 (5.5%) to £305,775 during the financial year to the 31st March 2022 as a result of market volatility.

The Council has no loans repayable by or to it currently.

Conclusion

There are no matters arising in this area of our review warranting formal comment or recommendation. We have noted the Clerk/RFO and Council's actions, having reviewed our prior year recommendations, in relation to spreading of the Council's investment risk, protecting the tax funded Precept payment as far as it is possible to do so whilst achieving a return on the investment of the funds on behalf of its constituents.

Statement of Accounts and Annual Return

As noted elsewhere in this report, the Council continues to engage the services of third-party accountancy contractors for its year-end closedown processes, together with the preparation of the detailed annual financial Statements of Accounts and Annual Return data.

As recorded in previous years' final reports, the Annual Return provides the Council's statutory Statements of Account subject to external audit certification. We also note, however, that more detailed Accounts and Supplementary Notes (based on the FRSSE format) have again been prepared for presentation to members in order to further inform them of the underlying financial performance of the Council and provide comparative information with the previous year.

We have checked and agreed, by reference to the accounting system's closing Trial Balance and other relevant documents, the content of the Statement of Accounts and the supporting notes, detail of which is transferred to Section 2 of the Annual Return.

We have also reviewed the procedures in place for identifying year-end debtors, creditors and accruals and agreed the detailed values recorded in the year-end Balance Sheet to the underlying records with no long-standing unpaid accounts or other issues arising.

Conclusion

We are pleased to record that there are no matters arising in this area of our review warranting formal comment or recommendation and, on the basis of the work undertaken during the course of our review for the year, we have "signed off" the Internal Audit Certificate in the Annual Return assigning positive assurances in all areas.

-000-

<u>NOTE TO REPORT</u>

We confirm that all confidential & sensitive information, supplied for the purposes of this audit including, Personnel Minutes, Payroll and Employment data have been permanently deleted from Auditing Solutions Ltd.'s servers and any printouts made for the purposes of this audit have been destroyed in accordance with the Company's data and document retention policies and with the prevailing General Data Protection Legislation.

FY2021-22 Action Plan

	74V/	
		Ġ
	outly 6	
	續	
	ξij.	
1		
-		
	0000	
- 1		
1		
- 1		
8		
l l		
ğ		
8		
Š	se	
ĝ	E	
8	<u>a</u>	
	ۆ	
3		
衛		
1		
1		
Ł		
i i		
몿		
1		
7		
9		
J.		
Ø.		
¥.		
	i il	
W .		
Ň		
Ġ.		
\$ 1		
1		8
X		
		1
	1	
ALC: N		j
		i
		ł
		ğ
		ì
1		
		H
E		Ĉ
=		l
2	4	è
ΝĔ		
12		
5	1	
Ö		
\simeq		
1	50	
	V.	
ခဲ့	0	
\simeq	Z	B
	STE	

Review of Corporate Governance.
R1 Only items of business publi

Only items of business published on Agenda may be discussed at the corresponding meetings of the Noted. Council or its Standing Committees.

Appendix 4(a)

Section 1 - Annual Governance Statement 2021/22

We acknowledge as the members of:

NEW MILTON TOWN COUNCIL

our responsibility for ensuring that there is a sound system of internal control, including arrangements for the preparation of the Accounting Statements. We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, with respect to the Accounting Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022, that:

· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	Ag	reed		
	Yes	No*	'Yes' means that this authority:	
 We have put in place arrangements for effective financial management during the year, and for the preparation of the accounting statements. 	/		prepared its accounting statements in accordance with the Accounts and Audit Regulations.	
We maintained an adequate system of internal control including measures designed to prevent and detect fraud and corruption and reviewed its effectiveness.	/		made proper arrangements and accepted responsibility for safeguarding the public money and resources in its charge.	
3. We took all reasonable steps to assure ourselves that there are no matters of actual or potential non-compliance with laws, regulations and Proper Practices that could have a significant financial effect on the ability of this authority to conduct its business or manage its finances.	/		has only done what it has the legal power to do and has complied with Proper Practices in doing so.	
4. We provided proper opportunity during the year for the exercise of electors' rights in accordance with the requirements of the Accounts and Audit Regulations.	/		during the year gave all persons interested the opportunity to inspect and ask questions about this authority's accounts.	
5. We carried out an assessment of the risks facing this authority and took appropriate steps to manage those risks, including the introduction of internal controls and/or external insurance cover where required.	/		considered and documented the financial and other risks it faces and dealt with them properly.	
We maintained throughout the year an adequate and effective system of internal audit of the accounting records and control systems.	/		arranged for a competent person, independent of the financia controls and procedures, to give an objective view on whether internal controls meet the needs of this smaller authority.	
. We took appropriate action on all matters raised in reports from internal and external audit.	/		responded to matters brought to its attention by internal and external audit.	
3. We considered whether any litigation, liabilities or commitments, events or transactions, occurring either during or after the year-end, have a financial impact on this authority and, where appropriate, have included them in the accounting statements.	/		disclosed everything it should have about its business act during the year including events taking place after the year end if relevant.	
. (For local councils only) Trust funds including charitable. In our capacity as the sole managing trustee we discharged our accountability responsibilities for the fund(s)/assets, including financial reporting and, if required, independent examination or audit.	Yes	No	N/A has met all of its responsibilities where, as a body corporate, it is a sole managing trustee of a local trust or trusts.	

*Please provide explanations to the external auditor on a separate sheet for each 'No' response and describe how the authority will address the weaknesses identified. These sheets must be published with the Annual Governance Statement.

This Annual Governance Statement was approved at a meeting of the authority on:	Signed by the Chairman and Clerk of the meeting where approval was given:		
and recorded as minute reference:	Chairman		
	Clerk		

Section 2 - Accounting Statements 2021/22 for

Appendix 4(b) Statements 2021/22 for NEW MILTON TOWN COUNCIL

	Year ending		Notes and guidance	
	31 March 2021 £	31 March 2022 £	Please round all figures to nearest £1. Do not leave any boxes blank and report £0 or Nil balances. All figures musagree to underlying financial records.	
Balances brought forward	645,589	622,434	Total balances and reserves at the boginning of the	
2. (+) Precept or Rates and Levies	1,130,212	1,130,212	Total amount of precent (or for IDBs rates and loving)	
3. (+) Total other receipts	153,745	203,501	Total income or receipts as recorded in the cashbook less the precept or rates/levies received (line 2). Include any grants received.	
4. (-) Staff costs	-504,749	-561,400	Total expenditure or payments made to and on behalf of all employees. Include gross salaries and wages, employers NI contributions, employers pension contributions, gratuities and severance payments.	
(-) Loan interest/capital repayments	ق	0	Total expenditure or payments of capital and interest made during the year on the authority's borrowings (if any	
6. (-) All other payments	-802,363	766,636	Total expenditure or payments as recorded in the cash book less staff costs (line 4) and loan interest/capital repayments (line 5).	
7. (=) Balances carried forward	622,434	628,111	Total balances and reserves at the end of the year. Must equal (1+2+3) - (4+5+6).	
8. Total value of cash and short term investments	650,979	666,055	The sum of all current and deposit bank accounts, cash holdings and short term investments held as at 31 March – To agree with bank reconciliation.	
O. Total fixed assets plus long term investments and assets 5,443,362 5,44		5,491,808	The value of all the property the authority owns – it is made up of all its fixed assets and long term investments as at 31 March.	
10. Total borrowings	Ø	0	The outstanding capital balance as at 31 March of all loans from third parties (including PWLB).	
1. (For Local Councils Only) Disclosure note re Trust funds (including charitable)		No N/A	The Council, as a body corporate, acts as sole trustee for and is responsible for managing Trust funds or assets.	
			N.B. The figures in the accounting statements above do not include any Trust transactions.	

I certify that for the year ended 31 March 2022 the Accounting Statements in this Annual Governance and Accountability Return have been prepared on either a receipts and payments or income and expenditure basis following the guidance in Governance and Accountability for Smaller Authorities – a Practitioners' Guide to Proper Practices and present fairly the financial position of this authority.

Signed by Responsible Financial Officer before being presented to the authority for approval

I confirm that these Accounting Statements were approved by this authority on this date:

as recorded in minute reference:

Signed by Chairman of the meeting where the Accounting Statements were approved

Date





Town Development Manager Report

For Town Council Meeting 27 June 2022

1. Neighbourhood Plan

- The Town Council continues to liaise with landowners and local authorities to facilitate delivery of the Neighbourhood Plan Vision projects. The ambitious nature of these projects inevitably means plans have to be flexible although the commitment to deliver remains firm. When one project temporarily stalls, focus turns to more achievable projects. Current focus is with developing our green spaces to promote walking and outdoor recreation; the Youth Centre with progress slow but steady as solicitors advise on the appropriate route for securing the land; and exploring site locations continue to be evaluated for other vision projects.
- Supporting the Plan's health & wellbeing aims, the first 4-week course of socially prescribed cookery
 lessons has been successfully completed and the second course already started. This innovative project is
 gaining wider interest including GP practices in Hampshire and has recently featured on BBC's South
 Today. This project is a Town Council-led collaboration with Coastal Medical Partnership Social Prescribing
 Team, New Milton Quaker House and the Fresh Kitchen Cookery School.

2. Town Centre



The launch of the M&S
Foodhall – one of the
first in the country to
have the new
marketplace style layout
– is already having a
noticeably positive
impact on footfall in the
town centre.

3. Jubilee Window Competition

To involve local traders with the Jubilee celebrations, Go New Milton, NMRA, Station Financial and GDPM sponsored New Milton's Best Dressed Window Competition. 19 businesses entered sporting a wide range of creative displays including flags, knitted scones, knitted crowns, images of the Queen, and corgi creations! Judges included Cllrs Valya Schooling and Keith Craze and Lions President Steve Merrifield with the public contributing 282 votes.

1st, 2nd and 3rd place winners in both Charity and Retail categories will be announced on 3 July. A selection of some of the inspiring entries...









4. Town Council Websites – Number of users

	Go New Milton		Town Council	
	Users	Sessions	Users	Sessions
Jan-May 2022:	4.1K	4.5K	12K	15K
Jan-May 2021	2.4K	2.7K	9.1K	12K

Website use shows significant increase for both Town Council websites, comparing the first 5 months of 2022 with the same period in 2021.

Suna King 15 June 2022

NEW MILTON TOWN COUNCIL CALENDAR OF MEETINGS 2022-23

Month & Year	Town Council	Amenities Committee	F & GP Committee	Planning Committee
	Monday	Monday	Monday	Alternate Thursdays
May 2022	9 Annual Meeting	30	-	12 & 26
29 Jubilee Service				
June 2022	27	-	13	9 & 23
3 Platinum Jubilee				
July 2022	-	12 (Tues)	25	7 & 21
10 Indian Obelisk				
August 2022	8	-	-	4 & 18
23 WWII - Clock				
September 2022	-	5	19	1, 15 & 29
October 2022	3	17	31	13 & 27
24 Annual Allots				
November 2022	14	28	-	10 & 24
13 Remembrance				
December 2022	-	-	19	8 & 22
3 Carol Service				
January 2023	3 (Tues)	16	30	5 & 19
February 2023	13	28 (Tues)	-	2 & 16
March 2023	27 20 Annual Towns	-	13	2, 16 & 30
April 2023	-	11 (Tues)	24	13 & 27
May 2023 (Elections 4 May)	15 Annual Meeting	30 (Tues)	-	11 & 25

All meetings are normally held at 6.30pm in the Town Hall, 2 Ashley Road, BH25 6AS Members of the Public are welcome to attend any meeting and may speak as follows:

- a) If time permits, Town Council meetings will be adjourned at the end for a '<u>DEMOCRATIC HALF HOUR</u>' during which members of the Public, with the approval of the Chairman, may initiate discussion on matters of community interest and which fall within the responsibility of the Town Council.
- b) Prior to the commencement of other meetings, and at the discretion of the Chairman, a short period of Public Participation may take place. Members of the public may speak on any item(s) appearing on the public agenda, or on any other matter that falls within the Committee's terms of reference.

<u>Annual Town's Meeting</u> is a public meeting normally required by statute to be held in the period between 1 March and 1 June (inclusive) each year. <u>Note: It is not a Town Council meeting</u>. <u>Annual Meeting of the Council</u> - In a year of ordinary elections of parish councillors, the annual meeting shall be held within 14 days of the councillors elected at that election taking office.